MINUTES of the meeting of Regulatory Committee held at Committee Room 1, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square, Hereford, HR1 2HX on Wednesday 22 June 2016 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor DW Greenow (Chairman)

Councillor BA Baker (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: PA Andrews, TL Bowes, CR Butler, BA Durkin, PJ McCaull,

SM Michael, AR Round and WC Skelton

In attendance:

Officers: Marc Willimont, Charles Yarnold, David Hough, Bruce Chartres, Lis Laughland

and Sarah Osbourne

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors BA Baker, MD Lloyd-Hayes, and MT McEvilly.

15. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

In accordance with paragraph 4.1.23 of the council's constitution, Cllr SM Michael attended the meeting as a substitute member for Cllr MD Lloyd-Hayes.

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Agenda item 6 – Report on regulatory activity by environmental health and trading standards – 2015/16 annual report.

Councillor DW Greenow declared a non-pecuniary interest because he was a regular visitor to the livestock market in hereford.

Cllr TL Bowes declared a non-pecuniary interest because her partner has a premises with a food rating.

17. MINUTES

Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on the 14 October 2015 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the chairman.

18. REPORT ON REGULATORY ACTIVITY BY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND TRADING STANDARDS - 2015/16 (ANNUAL REPORT)

The committee was invited to note the main regulatory activities of the council's, environmental health and trading standards (EHTS) services for the year 2015-16 period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

The head of environmental health and development management (HEHDM) presented the report.

The Committee expressed their appreciation for the work which was undertaken by the department.

The report provided the committee with performance information about the main activities and regulatory responsibilities with EHTS to enable the committee to fulfil its role in overseeing the discharge of the council's regulatory functions and exercise of regulatory powers and duties of the council.

In discussion the following principal points were made:

The HEHDM in response to a members comment that smoking was taking place at the livestock market explained that smoking can take place in some areas of the market but that officers will be reminded to be vigilant on future visits to the market.

In reply to question regarding information available on the council's website the HEHDM acknowledged the importance of providing information in a variety of mediums and the service is continually assessing the quality and availability of information across the service.

A member raised the issue of air quality in Bargates, Leominster commenting that a traffic census had been requested in the area adding that a full report on traffic movements would be welcome. The member was invited to follow up his concerns with the HEHDM.

The service operated a police and crime commissioner funded out-of-hours noise patrols over 10 weekends in the summer of 2015. The committee were informed that the service would be repeated during this summer and members expressed their interest in accompanying officers on theses patrols and were advised to register their interest with the clerk.

Members noted reference to the closure of a Ledbury takeaway and thanked officers for their actions. It was also commented that the service does not receive the good publicity it deserves and positive coverage in local newspapers would be welcome.

In response to a members concern regarding commercial refuse being placed outside premises at night and attracting the attention of seagulls before collection. it was confirmed that an additional officer had recently been recruited in the trade waste department and this additional resource would be welcome in managing the situation.

The committee congratulated officers on the results of the business satisfaction survey 2015/16. The survey measured the satisfaction of businesses with local authority regulatory services and had recorded a 100% satisfaction rating. These figures compared favourably with 2013/14 and 2014/15 with satisfaction ratings of 100% and 96% respectively.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted

The Chairman thanked all officers and the department on behalf of the committee.

Mike Jones the legal adviser to the committee announced that he would be retiring and therefore the meeting would be his last for this committee. He thanked both the chair and the committee for their support and guidance.

The Chairman thanked him on behalf of the committee for his advice on all matters.